
 

       
 

 
 

 
 
 

       
       

 
       
       

       
     

 
         

 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
     

 
   

     
     

 
                     

 
           

         
       

       
       
       

                   
                

               
               
               
         

 

CIC:a 

Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency– Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. 

Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education 
2535 Capitol Oaks Drive, Suite 400, Sacramento, CA 95833 
P.O. Box 980818, West Sacramento, CA 95798-0818 
P (916) 431-6959  F (916) 263-1897   www.bppe.ca.gov 

Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, February 13, 2018 

Department of Consumer Affairs 
Hearing Room, 1st Floor 
1625 North Market Blvd. 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Advisory Committee Members in Attendance 

1. Diana Amaya
2. Tamika Butler
3. Hanya Carbajal
4. Joseph Holt
5. Katherine Lee‐Carey
6. Margaret Reiter
7. Megumi Tsutsui
8. David Vice

Committee Members Absent 

Gabrielle Jimenez 
Assemblymember Jose Medina 
Senator Jerry Hill 

Bureau for Private Postsecondary Education (Bureau) and DCA Staff in Attendance 

Dr. Michael Marion Jr., Bureau Chief 
Leeza Rifredi, Deputy Bureau Chief 
Yvette Johnson, Enforcement Chief 
Beth Scott, Enforcement Chief 
Marina O’Connor, Licensing Chief 
Robert Bayles, Education Administrator 
Scott Valverde, Office of Student Assistance & Relief (OSAR) Chief 
Christopher Castrillo, Deputy Director, Board and Bureau Services 
Jason Piccione, Deputy Director, Office of Information Services 
Mina Hamilton, Legal Counsel, Department of Consumer Affairs 
Matt Nishimine, Budget Analyst, Department of Consumer Affairs 
Kent Gray, Legislative Analyst 

Page 1 of 18 

http://www.bppe.ca.gov/


 

       
 

               
 

                            
                             

                          
                  

 
                               

                               
       

 
                               

                                   
  

 
                               

                               
                           

                           
                             
                                 

                               
                    

 
 

                   
 

         
 
 

                     
   

 
                           

                             
        

 
 

                   
 

                       
                           

                           
                                     

Agenda #1 ‐Welcome, Introductions, and Establishment of a Quorum 

BPPE Advisory Committee Chair Katherine Lee‐Carey called the meeting to order at 9:33 AM. 
Ms. Lee‐Carey welcomed the Advisory Committee, BPPE Staff, DCA Staff, and the public to the 
meeting. She welcomed two new Advisory Committee members and the new Bureau Chief. 
She offered new members an opportunity to introduce themselves. 

Ms. Tsutsui introduced herself by noting that she is filling a consumer advocate position on the 
Committee. She added that she is a staff attorney for Housing & Economic Rights Advocates, a 
legal services non‐profit organization. 

Ms. Carbajal introduced herself by noting that she is filling a former student position on the 
Committee. She added that the she is a legal assistant for a personal injury law firm in Los 
Angeles. 

Dr. Michael Marion introduced himself as the new Bureau Chief. He emphasized how it is an 
honor and pleasure to work for the great consumers of California. He detailed how he has 
worked in education his entire professional career. He added that he most recently transitioned 
from Drexel University as the Associate Vice Provost and an adjunct professor. He continued 
that he is looking forward to working with the Committee. He highlighted his appreciation of 
the hard work of Bureau staff and the assistance he has received from DCA staff through the 
transition into his new role. He also thanked Bureau Deputy Chief Leeza Rifredi and the other 
Bureau chiefs for their hard work during this transitional period. 

Agenda #2 ‐ Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda 

There was no public comment. 

Agenda #3 ‐ Review and Approval of February 15, 2017, Advisory Committee Meeting 
Minutes 

David Vice moved to approve the minutes; Tamika Butler seconded the motion. (Ms. Lee‐Carey: 
Aye; Margaret Reiter: Aye; Ms. Carbajal: Aye; Diana Amaya: Aye; Joseph Holt: Aye; Ms. Tsutsui: 
Aye). The motion passed. 

Agenda #4 ‐ Remarks by Representative of the Department of Consumer Affairs 

Christopher Castrillo, Deputy Director of Board and Bureau Services, provided remarks on 
behalf of DCA. He updated the Committee on the recent Director’s quarterly meeting. He 
explained that these meetings are an opportunity for DCA boards, bureaus, and programs to 
have a direct line of communication with the Director. He noted that one of the big items at the 

Page 2 of 18 



 

       
 

                         
                                   
                          

 
                               
                                 

                               
                   

                                 
        

 
                       

                         
                               

                             
                                

 
                           

                                     
                             

                         
       

 
 

                       
                         

   
 

                             
                           
                           
    

 
                               

                             
                         

                               
                        
                               
                         

                               
                             

                             
                           

most recent quarterly meeting was unveiling DCA’s strategic plan, and outlining strategic goals 
DCA will be working on in 2018. He added that there will be three more quarterly meetings this 
year, and that he looks forward to working with the Bureau moving forward. 

Mr. Castrillo reported on the Executive Brown Bag event that will be taking place on February 
28, 2018. He noted that the event will take place with the assistance of DCA’s SOLID Training 
Solutions. He detailed the event as a structured social gathering that will provide a forum for 
transferring knowledge, building trust, and establishing networking relationships. He added 
that the event is an opportunity for executive officers and the board and bureau chiefs to get 
together to share knowledge. 

Mr. Castrillo commented on DCA’s Future Leadership Development Program. He noted that 
Marina O’Connor, the Bureau’s new Licensing Chief, participated in the program. He detailed 
the program as an opportunity for staff across all DCA to learn through executive mentoring. He 
explained that participants are paired with an executive who they work together with on a 
project. He concluded that the program is a key component to grooming future leaders of DCA. 

Mr. Castrillo provided the Committee an opportunity to ask questions. Ms. Reiter asked Mr. 
Castrillo if he had an update on the status of the Bureau getting a new IT system. Mr. Castrillo 
pointed out that Jason Piccione, Office of Information Services Chief, will provide an update on 
that status under the “Business Modernization as it Relates to the Bureau’s Information 
Technology Systems” agenda item. 

Agenda #5 ‐ Presentation by a Representative of the Department of Consumer Affairs’ Office 
of Information Services on Business Modernization as it Relates to the Bureau’s Information 
Technology Systems 

Mr. Piccione provided a report on business modernization as it relates to the Bureau’s IT 
system. He defined business modernization as the initiative to address gaps in efficiencies in 
modern business processes for the boards and bureaus that were not implemented on the 
BreEZe platform. 

Mr. Piccione outlined the history of DCA’s efforts to implement new IT systems for boards and 
bureaus. He explained that the BreEZe project started with the planning and approval phase in 
2008 and continued through 2011. He stated that the development and implementation phase 
of BreEZe release 1 occurred during the years 2012‐2013. He added that release 1 included 10 
boards and bureaus and faced numerous well documented challenges. He continued that 
between 2014‐2016 there was an update to the plans and strategies of the BreEZe project that 
included the development and implementation of BreEZe release 2. He added that BreEZe 
release 2 encompassed 8 more boards and bureaus. He noted that by late 2014 the remaining 
18 boards and bureaus under DCA, to include the Bureau, was descoped from the BreEZe 
project. He noted that the BreEZe project ended after the implementation of release 2. He 
concluded that, following the end of the BreEZe implementation project, the Bureau was left 

Page 3 of 18 



 

       
 

                       
              

 
                           

                             
                       

                         
                         

                       
                     

                      
 

                               
                             

                               
                             

                             
                             
                                 

  
 

                             
                             

                       
                           
                             

                             
      

 
                               

                         
                               
                                 

                             
                         

                         
 

                             
                           

                                   
                             
                                   

                               
                                     

without a clear roadmap to overcome technological deficiencies, like the Bureau’s outdated 
SAIL system and need for data analytics. 

Mr. Piccione explained that stakeholders expressed concern in how DCA planned to address the 
remaining boards and bureaus that were descoped from the BreEZe project. He stated that, in 
2017, DCA began to develop a business modernization plan and individual business 
modernization reports to address the remaining boards and bureaus. He detailed the business 
modernization plan as a single document that outlines lessons learned, guiding principles, and 
guardrails for each program’s initiative. He continued that the business modernization reports 
are collaborative documents that fundamentally address each program individually and provide 
a living document to react to and reflect the program itself. 

Mr. Piccione detailed three hallmarks of the plan and reports. He explained that the plan is 
titled “Business Modernization” because the focus is on the entire business of the Bureau. He 
continued that all aspects of Bureau business will be considered for the final goal of developing 
and implementing a new IT system. He explained that the initiation and continuation of the 
project will depend on the organizational readiness of the Bureau, and what the Bureau deems 
as appropriate for target timelines and outcomes. He concluded that the efforts of the project 
are solely based on the needs of the Bureau, not an aggregate or composite of perceived DCA 
needs. 

Mr. Piccione provided three major components of the project. He explained that the first phase 
is the “business activities” portion of the project, which has already started. He stated that 
business activities include documenting all business processes in an “as‐is” manner and “could‐
be” scenarios and developing a business need specification. He continued that the next phase 
will be the project approval life cycle (PAL) process, which is a California Department of 
Technology (DOT) required approval process for IT projects. He added that the last process will 
be system implementation. 

Mr. Piccione reported on the current metrics of the project. He noted his appreciation of the 
Bureau for allocating resources and participating effectively in the business activities portion of 
the project. He detailed that there have been 18 meetings with 99 staff members involved in 
the meetings over the past 6 months. He added that 95% of the Bureau’s processes have been 
mapped in an “as‐is” scenario. He also stated that 20 “could‐be” scenario maps have been 
completed. He clarified the importance of “could‐be” maps and explained how they broaden 
the possibilities of technological advances that could be implemented in the new system. 

Mr. Piccione provided proposed timelines for the project. He noted that Bureau staff has been 
working vigorously on the business activities phase to complete the business maps. He stated 
that the business activities phase is set to conclude in the second quarter of 2018. He said the 
next step, which is already underway, is drafting the stage one business analysis. He continued 
that the business analysis is the first step of the PAL process, which must be submitted to DOT 
to get the PAL process started. He added that the proposed timeframe to submit the business 
analysis to DOT is April 2018, but that it may be submitted by March 2018. He noted that the 

Page 4 of 18 



 

       
 

                           
                     

                               
                                     

                             
                                 
                                 
 

 
                         
                               

                             
                                
                                     

                               
                      

 
                           
                               

                           
                           

                         
                   

  
 

                             
                                 
                                 

                             
                               

                             
                          

 
                             

                           
                     

                           
                       

          
 

                                 
                           

                             

next steps have more variables, including dependability on external factors, and thus have less 
certain proposed timeframes. He detailed that, following the PAL process, system 
implementation is proposed for a July 2019 timeframe. He continued that a release 1 version of 
the new system is proposed to go live in July 2020. He described release 1 as an optional and 
minimal viable product that can be used as a deployable strategy to identify a fundamental 
baseline of functionality to build off for release 2. He concluded that following release 1, if that 
strategy is employed, release 2 would go live in July 2021. He asked the Committee for any 
questions. 

Ms. Butler asked what external factors affect the proposed timelines. Mr. Piccione responded 
that one of the external factors and dependencies is the PAL process. He stated that the 
timeline to complete the PAL process can depend on how smoothly requests are handled back 
and forth between the Bureau and DOT. He added that another factor is platform choice. He 
noted that if a platform is chosen that DCA is not familiar with it could result in a longer 
timeline. Mr. Vice added that change of scope could also affect the timeline. Mr. Piccione noted 
that regulatory changes could also affect the scope and cause delays. 

Ms. Reiter asked for additional input on why the project is considered business modernization 
and not just an IT system update. Mr. Piccione emphasized how much focus is placed on 
business processes. He elaborated that, of the 18 meetings that have currently taken place 
throughout the project, none of the meetings have focused on technology, but rather have 
focused on Bureau processes. He added that the Bureau’s business process mapping meetings 
have already resulted in process improvements without any technological improvements 
implemented. 

Ms. Reiter asked for clarification on the approval aspect of the PAL process regarding timelines. 
Mr. Piccione stated the approval goes through DOT. Ms. Reiter asked if DOT has a backlog, and 
what is the typical timeframe for the PAL process. Mr. Piccione explained that PAL is a new 
process. He added that the current proposed timeline for the Bureau’s PAL process is from 
January 2018 to July 2019. He added that PAL is a four‐stage process that continually evaluates 
the viability of the project and includes a cost benefit analysis with consideration of potential 
changes that may occur between now and the implementation of a new system. 

Ms. Reiter asked if the new system would have the capability to incorporate needed changes 
moving forward. Mr. Piccione explained that any new platform would have that capability. He 
noted that there are differences between commercial off‐the‐shelf (COTS) products and 
completely custom products. He continued that a COTS product does allow for some business 
specific configurations, while a custom product, produced entirely by DCA, could offer 
potentially limitless options in configuration. 

Mr. Holt asked how long the Bureau has been using its current IT system. Mr. Piccione replied 
that the Bureau’s current system was implemented in 1999. Mr. Holt asked for additional 
clarification on the proposed timeline of July 2020 for the new IT system. Mr. Piccione 

Page 5 of 18 



 

       
 

                                   
            

 
                               

                             
                               
                               

                               
                           

                             
    

 
                             
                               

                           
                           

                       
                             
        

 
                                   
                             

                  
 
 

           
 

     
 

                           
                         

                                 
                                 

                           
                                 

                              
                           

                             
                           
                   

 
 
 

explained that the earliest a new IT system would be implemented for the Bureau is in line with 
the proposed timeline of July 2020. 

Ms. Reiter asked if resources inside or outside the Bureau would have an impact on the 
timeline. Mr. Piccione detailed that both could have an impact on the timeline. He explained 
that Bureau staff has been very engaged in the project, and that DCA’s SOLID Training Solutions 
has been assisting in the business process mapping. Ms. Reiter asked if the timeline could be 
affected by the prioritization of other boards and bureaus over the Bureau, or is the timeline 
dependent upon how quickly the Bureau works through the initiative. Mr. Piccione stated that 
the speed at which the Bureau goes through this initiative is nearly entirely dependent upon 
the Bureau. 

Ms. Reiter asked what exactly the Bureau would receive with release 2. Mr. Piccione detailed 
that if the Bureau chooses the release 1 strategy and implements a minimal viable system, then 
release 2 would include other Bureau components and applications in addition to the minimal 
viable system. He gave an example that release 1 could include licensing applications and 
enforcement applications, while release 2 would also include annual reporting and STRF 
applications. He added that after release 2 the system would be live and only require 
maintenance and/or minor modifications. 

Dr. Marion noted his appreciation for the hard work of Bureau staff and DCA in the efforts to 
push this project forward. He added that, in addition to business modernization, the Bureau is 
launching a newly designed website on February 21, 2018. 

Agenda #6 ‐ Bureau Operations Update and Discussion 

Bureau Fund Condition: 

Matt Nishimine provided a report on the Bureau’s fund condition and fees. Mr. Nishimine 
explained that Senate Bill 1192 (California Private Postsecondary Education Act of 2009), which 
came in to effect on January 1, 2017, increased the annual fees for institutions. He added that 
the fees will increase again on July 1, 2018. He explained that at the May 2017 Advisory 
Committee meeting he reported that there was not enough data to give any conclusive 
projections regarding full year revenues. He continued that now that there is a full year of data 
available he can provide projections on revenues for future years. He pointed to the supplied 
“fund condition statement” and provided an explanation of the data. He noted that the 
projections do not account for external factors outside of the Bureau that could affect revenue 
or expenditures. He concluded that based on current data the prior projections were accurate, 
and therefore he is confident in the future projections. 

Page 6 of 18 



 

       
 

   
 

                   
                             

                         
                                 

     
 

                             
                               

                           
 

 
                               
                                   

                                 
                             

                  
 

                             
                             

                               
                       

                          
                         

                         
                         

 
 

   
 

                         
                           

                             
                           

                       
                         
          

 
                       

                           
                             

                           
                             

Public Comment: 

Robert Johnson representing California Association of Private Postsecondary Schools (CAPPS) 
provided a public comment. Mr. Johnson stated that the amount of Bureau staff has increased 
over the years, while the number of institutions operating has decreased. He questioned 
whether the Bureau has the appropriate number of staff to fulfil the Bureau’s mission and to be 
an effective organization. 

Mr. Johnson stated that an increase in annual fees exacerbates the number of schools closing. 
He added that some institutions are not able to meet required financial ratios due to increased 
annual fees. He noted that students would share the costs of increased institutional annual 
fees. 

Mr. Johnson stated that the Bureau has gone on an unusual regulatory writing binge over the 
past 5 to 6 years. He noted that in 2010 the Bureau carried over regulations from the previous 
bureau, and then continued to add regulations on top of those regulations. He noted that if the 
Bureau is looking for areas to increase efficiency, then regulations could be modified to contain 
less requirements for applicants to gain approval to operate. 

Ms. Reiter asked Mr. Johnson what regulations could be modified that are not mandated by 
legislation. She stated that she could not recall any adopted regulations that were not required 
by statute. Mr. Johnson responded that the Bureau has used its discretion related to statutes to 
add additional requirements. He added that the Bureau has requirements beyond legislative 
mandates, such as institutional reporting requirements. He concluded that he is suggesting the 
Bureau not only modify regulations, but also review its entire innerworkings to reduce 
institutional requirements and increase efficiency. Ms. Reiter asked Mr. Johnson if he could 
provide the Committee with specific examples of Bureau regulations that over reach statutory 
mandates. 

Enforcement Report: 

BPPE Enforcement Chief Yvette Johnson provided a report on enforcement. She detailed that 
during 2017 the Bureau received 764 complaints and closed 607 complaints. She explained that 
in 2017 the Bureau benefited students by recouping refunds for tuition and fees, which totaled 
over one hundred thousand dollars. She added that the Bureau helped students in the 
following ways: retake classes at no additional charge, graduate by properly recalculating 
earned credits, obtain student records resulting in some qualifying for state examinations, and 
helped students complete educational programs. 

Ms. Johnson provided examples of process improvements that have been implemented. She 
explained that the template for an investigative report was revised to increase efficiency. She 
added that peer reviews were implemented to improve the quality of the reports. She noted 
that the investigative scope of complaints has been narrowed down to the student’s specific 
issue, and that further investigation into an institution is only initiated when found to be 

Page 7 of 18 



 

       
 

                             
                

 
                               

                               
                                 
                  

 
                           

                             
                           
            

 
                                     
                                 

                                 
                             

                    
 

                               
                             
                           

                             
                           
                              

                                 
  

 
                               

                           
                               

                               
                           
                           
  

 
                               

                             
                             
                           

                               
                            

 

necessary. She stated that the Bureau is working with the Attorney General’s office to develop 
training opportunities regarding investigative techniques and report writing. 

Ms. Johnson reported that there are 10 vacancies in the unit. She added that 2 investigator 
positions have been filled, and those individuals will start in March 2018. She noted that the 
office is actively recruiting to fill vacancies. Ms. Carey asked how many total positions are in the 
unit. Ms. Johnson replied that there are 21 positions. 

Ms. Johnson noted that the enforcement unit has been coordinating with the quality of 
education unit to work on quality of education related complaints. She added that there has 
been collaboration with other boards and bureaus under DCA to handle complaints that have 
dual licensure and program specific issues. 

Mr. Holt asked if lack of staff is the cause for a reduction in complaints closed year over year. 
Ms. Johnson confirmed that a lack of staff has been causing the reduction. She added that the 
Bureau has lost 2 managers, and that the managers who remain have been needed to train new 
staff as staff turnover continues. She noted that since managers are spending more time on 
training, they have had less time to review complaint cases. 

Mr. Holt asked whether the unit has taken any special actions to address the three hundred 
plus complaints that are over 2 years old. Ms. Johnson responded that management in other 
units have been assisting by reviewing cases, and that lead analysts have been assisting 
subordinate analysts. She added that she found 57% of complaints older than 2 years were 
internally generated, and noted that those cases do not have individual students waiting for 
resolution. Mr. Holt asked if any of the older complaints involve closed schools. Ms. Johnson 
reported that the unit is currently reviewing the cases to identify any that may involve a closed 
school. 

Ms. Reiter suggested that the unit staffing issues could be eased by having a Bureau branch 
location in Los Angeles. She stated that adding the branch location would have additional 
expenses, but those expenses could be offset by a reduction in staff travel expenses. She noted 
that having a branch in Los Angeles would increase the number of potential employees to fill 
vacancies. She added that student complaints should take a high priority, and that internal 
complaints should also be given priority because they may indicate systemic problems with an 
institution. 

Ms. Reiter asked what portion of the open complaints have been referred to an outside agency 
or if complaints are closed after being referred to another agency. Ms. Johnson explained that 
complaints that entirely pertain to another agency are closed once referred to that agency. She 
continued that some complaints that get referred to another agency remain open with the 
Bureau because they deal with violations under Bureau law. Ms. Reiter stated that it would be 
helpful to see what percentage of open complaints are being worked by outside agencies. 

Page 8 of 18 



 

       
 

                                 
            

 
                             

                                 
                               

                     
              

 
                               

                         
                  

 
                          
                       
                       

            
 

         
 

                           
                             

                           
                           
                             

                  
 

                           
                           

                               
                         
                               
                             

                               
                                 
  

 
                             
                             

                           
                      

 

Ms. Reiter suggested that it could be beneficial for the Bureau to work with the consumer law 
section within the Attorney General’s Office. 

Mr. Vice pointed out that there were 17 percent fewer complaints received in 2017 compared 
to 2016. He asked what may have contributed to the reduction. He asked if schools are getting 
better or are there just fewer schools. Ms. Johnson noted that the Bureau’s hard work in 
educating licensees and current institutions through licensing and compliance workshops has 
contributed to the reduction in complaints received. 

Mr. Vice asked if the Bureau has an idea on how many institutions are operating illegally 
without approval. Ms. Johnson explained that the Bureau has an analyst dedicated to 
identifying and investigating institutions that are operating without approval. 

Ms. Tsutusi asked why internal complaints take longer to close than external complaints. 
Ms. Johnson explained that the Bureau prioritizes external complaints because they originate 
from students. She added that some internal complaints involve multiple units requiring 
additional time to resolve the issue. 

Annual Reports and Compliance Report: 

BPPE Enforcement Chief Beth Scott provided a report on compliance and the annual reports 
unit. Ms. Scott reported that the compliance unit has taken a very proactive approach to 
educating licensees on compliance. She explained that the Bureau will be piloting a monthly 
conference call open to all schools, which will provide a question and answer opportunity 
pertaining to licensing, enforcement, and compliance. She added that the call will include a hot 
topic item that will be discussed with participating schools. 

Ms. Scott reported that staff analyzed workshop attendance based on location and made the 
appropriate changes to scheduling. She explained that when initial interest is low for a 
workshop, staff reaches out to local schools to invite them to attend the workshop. She added 
that the compliance and “school performance fact sheet” workshops are scheduled on the 
same day at the same location to provide convenience to the schools. She detailed that the 
signup form for the workshops were updated to include an opportunity for schools to submit 
questions in advance of the meeting. She stated that this has allowed the Bureau to address 
questions prior to the workshop so the school can focus more heavily on the content of the 
workshop. 

Ms. Scott detailed that the compliance unit is working on increasing the number of inspections. 
She reported that, as of December 2017, the Bureau has 1,040 main institutions under its 
jurisdiction. She added that the Bureau currently has nine active inspectors, one inspector on 
leave, and two inspector vacancies in the process of being filled. 

Page 9 of 18 



 

       
 

                                 
                           

  
 

                           
                

 
                               
                                

 
                           

                               
                             

 
                               
                                   
                               

                             
 

 
                                   

                         
                      

                           
                               

          
 

                             
                             
                             
  

 
                             

                           
                           
         

 
   

 
                     

                         
                         

                           
                      

Ms. Scott reported that the unit is testing the use of tablets for inspectors. She explained that 
tablets reduce the amount of material the inspector must carry and increases efficiently and 
automation. 

Ms. Scott detailed her involvement in the unit’s as‐is process mapping, which was an 
opportunity for her to identify areas of improvement. 

Ms. Scott reported that a tracking system has been developed to track inspections from start to 
finish. She noted the system has assisted in productivity and keeping the case load on track. 

Ms. Scott described a new innovative strategy the annual reports unit has implemented. She 
stated that each annual report analyst has been assigned a group of schools. She explained this 
allows the analyst to take a more personalized approach when working with the schools. 

Mr. Vice asked what is the projected number of inspections the unit expects to perform in 
2018. Ms. Scott replied that if the unit was fully staffed and fully trained, then the unit could 
fulfill the mandate. She added that in January 2018, the unit performed the most inspections it 
has in a 14‐month period. She noted that the number of inspections performed is trending 
upwards. 

Mr. Vice asked if it would be helpful to give an institution a 24‐hour notice prior to an 
unannounced inspection to ensure the institution is prepared for the inspection. Ms. Scott 
replied that, in addition to unannounced inspections, there are announced inspections. 
Ms. Reiter noted that institutions are statutorily required to have a staff member present 
available during business hours. She added that a bad actor type of school could hide evidence 
of misdeeds within 24 hours. 

Ms. Reiter stated the importance for the Bureau to identify problem schools before they cause 
student harm. She continued that she thinks the Bureau is falling short in identifying problem 
schools. Ms. Scott pointed out that the Bureau does prioritize inspections based on 19 different 
criteria. 

Mr. Vice asked if inspectors look for the same things during an announced and unannounced 
inspection. Ms. Scott responded that the same areas are reviewed for both inspections. She 
added that specific areas may be inspected more thoroughly based on what is discovered 
during the pre‐inspection process. 

Public Comment: 

Mr. Johnson commented on internally generated complaints. He stated that internally 
generated complaints seem to be outpacing student generated complaints. He noted that there 
is an issue with how internally generated complaints are resolved because of contrasting 
perspectives from different units within the Bureau. He suggested assigning a single point of 
contact to communicate and coordinate with an institution regarding a complaint. 

Page 10 of 18 



 

       
 

 
                               

                           
  

                        
 

                             
                             

                           
                             

                    
 

                           
                               

                           
                             

                                   
  

 
   

 
                         

                               
                             
                             

                           
                             

              
 

                               
                           

                             
                           
                     

 
                             
                           

 
                             

                               
                     

        
 

           

Ms. Lee‐Carey referenced how the Bureau’s Annual Reports unit assigns an analyst to a set of 
schools to work on and suggested working on applying that same concept throughout the 
Bureau. 
Dr. Marion noted that Bureau has been working towards more open collaboration. 

Mr. Holt asked how confident the Bureau is in the numbers of internally and externally 
generated complaints identified in the report. Ms. Johnson stated she is very confident in the 
reported numbers. Mr. Holt asked what has contributed to the decline in internal complaints 
from 2016 to 2017. Ms. Johnson explained that staff combine an internal complaint with an 
external complaint if both complaints relate to the same problem. 

Ms. Reiter questioned if the Committee could be provided with a random sampling of 
complaints to get a better sense of what complaints the Bureau receives and how they are 
handled. She added that it would provide clarification to the different categories of complaints 
that are received. Mina Hamilton, DCA Legal Counsel, noted that for legal reasons, a complaint 
in its entirety cannot be released to the public, but that a summary of a complaint could be 
released. 

Licensing Report: 

Marina O’Connor introduced herself as the new Bureau Licensing Chief. She acknowledged one 
of the biggest concerns in the licensing unit is addressing the backlog. She explained that the 
unit is considering multiple solutions to reducing the backlog. She added that the licensing unit 
has been collaborating with other units to ensure processes are not being duplicated and to 
improve cross unit communication. She stated that there is a focus on maintaining timelines 
and taking accountability. She noted that letters that go out to institutions are being reviewed 
to ensure clarity to avoid further delays. 

Ms. O’Connor explained that the unit is looking to expand outreach. She stated that one idea 
being considered is creating web tutorials that would explain in detail the licensing application 
process. She detailed how web tutorials would enable the Bureau to reach a much wider 
audience. She added that web tutorials could result in a greater number of complete 
applications with fewer deficiencies, which would speed up the process. 

Ms. O’Connor detailed the licensing chart provided in the meeting packet. She pointed out that 
over the past four months, the number of pending applications has decreased by 20%. 

Ms. Reiter commented that it would be helpful for purposes of comparison if the charts 
provided in the meeting packet by each unit followed a similar format. She added that it 
appears that applications submitted by institutions are being processed quicker than 
complaints submitted by students. 

Student Tuition Recovery Fund (STRF) Report: 

Page 11 of 18 



 

       
 

 
                                 
                                   

                               
          

 
                               
                             

                           
                             

      
 

                         
                         
                         

                   
                    

 
                           
                           

                         
                                 

                             
  

 
                           

                               
                         

                               
                         

  
 

                           
                               

                             
                             
                           

         
 

                                 
                        

 
                               

                           

OSAR Chief Scott Valverde provided a report on OSAR. He reported that of the 10 positions the 
office was allocated, 8 of those positions have been filled. He added that a 9th position will soon 
be filled. He stated that the office has taken over assisting students with STRF claims and 
student outreach activities and functions. 

Mr. Valverde reported that over the past 7 months he worked with the previous Bureau Chief 
and Director to develop cobranding for OSAR. He detailed the creation of an OSAR mission 
statement, logo, website, and social media pages. He detailed an initial press release regarding 
the launch of OSAR, which led to several media contacts that resulted in additional awareness 
of the office. 

Mr. Valverde explained that the office has established direct relationships with all statutorily 
required outreach partners, as well as other outreach partners that are not necessarily 
statutorily mandated. He added that the mandated partners are as follows: Student Aid 
Commission, Department of Education, California Department of Veteran Affairs, California 
Community College Chancellors Office, and the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. 

Mr. Valverde stated that the office has updated procedures for STRF processing and outreach. 
He noted that the office engaged in a targeted outreach campaign to former Corinthian 
students. He explained that the office reached out to approximately 5700 former Corinthian 
students that had not filed a claim or contacted the Bureau. He added that the students were 
sent information on OSAR and STRF. He noted the outreach resulted in 84 additional STRF 
claims. 

Mr. Valverde outlined his approach to implementing a customer first culture in OSAR. He 
explained that OSAR staff operate as a single point of contact to help customers fulfill their 
needs. He added that the individualized approach is being implemented through staff training 
and following a specific set of “customers first” principles when hiring staff. He noted that staff 
is focusing on educating students about school choice and assisting students with school 
closures. 

Mr. Valverde reported that the office has met its statutory mandate of posting quarterly 
reports. He added that the reports are posted on the Bureau and OSAR websites. He detailed 
the quarterly report provided to the Committee for review. He emphasized the diversity in the 
types of events the office has been participating in through outreach. He also pointed out 
events staff participated in that involve assisting veterans with transitioning out of the military 
and into the civil sector. 

Mr. Vice asked if it was necessary to have so many staff for processing STRF. Mr. Valverde 
replied that only two staff members primary focus is processing STRF claims. 

Mr. Vice questioned whether there is a need to use resources to proactively reach out to 
prospective students. Dr. Marion responded that OSAR has been operating for 7 months. He 

Page 12 of 18 



 

       
 

                                 
                                   
                
                               
                                     

                             
                          

 
                               
                               

                          
 

                                 
                         

 
                               

                                   
                           

                           
                            

 
                               
                             
                                 

                               
 

                                
                           
                                 
                               

                                   
                

 
                             

                           
                         

                                   
                         

                           
                           

     
 

                               
               

added that it is important for OSAR to spread awareness as to what the office offers. 
Mr. Vice stated that the STRF fund balance is high in relation to the number of schools closing. 
Mr. Valverde agreed that STRF is well funded. 
Ms. Lee‐Carey asked Mr. Valverde if he has discovered any reason why few students apply for 
STRF or why are some found to not be eligible for STRF. Mr. Valverde stated that, of the 7 
months OSAR has been operational, there have not been that many school closures. He added 
that, however, most of the eligible students from those schools are submitting claims. 

Ms. Lee‐Carey stated that it would be helpful to see the average amount a student receives 
from a STRF claim. She added that the $27 million fund has withstood two major school 
closures, and the impact has been very minimal to the total fund balance. 

Ms. Butler asked if OSAR is focusing on a diverse mix of demographics. Mr. Valverde stated that 
staff have been directed to search for outreach opportunities to assist all demographics. 

Ms. Reiter asked if OSAR will be developing materials to hand out to students. Ms. Valverde 
stated that a mini flyer has been produced, and noted that it would be provided at the next 
meeting. Ms. Reiter suggested that the flyer contain a cost benefit analysis of attending for‐
profit private institutions and attending a community college. She added that the flyer should 
point out the issues the private postsecondary education industry has faced over the years. 

Ms. Reiter stated that the current trend in reduction of school closures could be comparable to 
times in the past when federal regulations were tightened. She added that we are currently 
facing a period of looser regulations which may likely result in an increase in school closures in 
the future. She noted that the industry tends to be cyclical in relation to federal regulations. 

Ms. Reiter asked what happens when a student files for STRF and a federal loan discharge. 
Mr. Valverde responded that there would be referral made to the Department of Education 
(DOE) for a discharge, and that the amount not covered by the federal loan discharge would be 
covered using STRF. He continued that the STRF claim would remain open until a final decision 
was made by the DOE on the federal discharge. Ms. Reiter asked if those claims could be shown 
in the report at the next Committee meeting. 

Ms. Reiter asked what additional steps OSAR is taking to contact students when the contact 
information on file has not been effective in reaching the students. Mr. Valverde responded 
that staff diligently compares multiple student rosters to ensure all methods of contact 
available to OSAR are utilized. He added that staff has used social media, and word of mouth by 
having students tell other students about STRF. Ms. Reiter suggested using an online 
subscription service to find student contacts. Ms. Reiter also suggested that when the Bureau 
receives a transcript request that staff provide STRF informational material with the copies of 
the student’s transcript. 

Ms. Reiter requested that the OSAR report include the types of services that are provided to 
students and the results of the services provided. 

Page 13 of 18 



 

       
 

 
                                   
                             
                             

                               
                                   

                               
                               

            
 

                       
                     

                   
 

   
 

                           
                               

                             
                               

                             
              

 
         

 
                             
                             

                          
 

                       
                                 

      
 

                             
                         

  
   

 
                           

                         
                           

                         
                         

Ms. Reiter asked if OSAR has been making the decision on whether to approve or deny a STRF 
claim. Ms. Scott explained that OSAR provides a recommendation on approval or denial to the 
Bureau Deputy Chief, but that the Bureau Deputy Chief makes the final decision. Ms. Reiter 
explained that it could be a conflict for OSAR staff to make recommendations on STRF claims. 
She stated that she does not think that is what is statutorily mandated. Mr. Scott noted that the 
Bureau Deputy Chief makes the final decision to avoid any conflict. Ms. Reiter stated that a 
conflict could arise if a student seeks further assistance with a denied claim, when OSAR staff 
recommended the denial of that claim. 

Mr. Vice suggested including statistics on private postsecondary student outcomes and public 
community colleges outcomes in future STRF informational material. Ms. Reiter suggested 
bringing STRF informational material before the Committee for discussion. 

Public Comment: 

Mr. Johnson asked about a new statute that allows for the reimbursement of consumer 
attorney fees for students who seek assistance with filing a STRF claim. He asked if the 
reimbursement goes to the student or directly to the attorney. Ms. Rifredi explained that the 
student would provide a receipt showing that they paid for an attorney, and then the student 
would be reimbursed up to $500. Mr. Johnson asked for data on consumer attorney fees 
reimbursements be added to the OSAR report. 

Agenda #7 ‐ Status Updates on Regulations 

Dr. Marion provided a status update on Bureau regulations. He reported that changes to the 
STRF regulations came in to effect on August 10, 2017, and changes to the compliance 
inspection and complaint prioritization regulations came in to effect on July 1, 2017. 

Dr. Marion noted that the regulation for registration of out‐of‐state private postsecondary 
institutions is currently in the process of being readopted and will soon be with the Office of 
Administrative Law (OAL). 

Dr. Marion stated that the English as a second language (ESL) regulatory package and the 
application for verification of exempt status regulatory package is under review by DCA. 

Public Comment: 

Raymond Trybus and Richard Miller of the San Diego University of Integrative Studies provided 
public comment on the proposed regulatory exemption for ESL programs. Mr. Trybus expressed 
his opposition to the proposed exemption. He pointed to materials he provided to the 
Committee. He stated the exemption granted in the ELS programs regulatory package violates 
the Bureau’s mission, vision, and value statement. He stated that by implementing the 

Page 14 of 18 



 

       
 

                       
 

 
                             

                             
                             

                               
                               

 
                             

                             
                             

                           
                           

                           
                             
              

 
                             

                          
 

                         
                             
                      

 
                             

 
                             
                         

                         
                       
                           
                             
                  

 
                             

                           
                         

        
 

                           
                             

                
 

exemption the Bureau would fall short of protecting consumers and holding institutions 
accountable. 

Mr. Trybus referenced an example client agreement between a student and an ELS school. He 
pointed out an issue with the agreement regarding the refund process. He continued that the 
responsibility to refund students falls on the agents (recruiters). He noted that in the example 
client agreement student refunds go directly to the agents and not the students. He stated that 
the institution has no control over how or if the refund goes back to the students. 

Mr. Trybus stated that the exemption is for ESL institutions that offer short term culturally 
focused programs. He noted that, however, the ESL institutions that are in support of the 
exemption offer programs beyond the scope of the exemption. He continued that many of the 
schools in support of the exemption are accredited, and to receive accreditation the schools 
must verify they offer programs that meet academic criteria that goes beyond short term 
culturally focused programs. He added that schools in support of the exemption are claiming 
they only offer short term cultural programs on the regulatory side, and then claiming they 
offer academic programs on the accreditation side. 

Mr. Trybus stated that by exempting ESL institutions the Bureau is reducing the number of 
schools the Bureau regulates, which would result in a reduction to Bureau revenue. 

Mr. Trybus referenced the meeting minutes from the previous Committee meeting. He stated 
that comments were made regarding a high amount of fraud among ESL programs. He added 
that the comments suggested regulatory oversight reduced fraud among ESL programs. 

Mr. Miller stated that students who attend an exempt school are not eligible for STRF. 

Ms. Reiter asked about the status of the ESL program exemption regulatory package. She noted 
that comments had been made regarding the exemption at previous meetings. She questioned 
whether those comments were taken into consideration prior to submitting the package for 
approval. Kent Gray, Bureau Legislative Analyst, responded that the Committee reviewed the 
proposed language at prior meetings, and that all input was taken into consideration before 
submitting the package for approval. He added that there will be an additional opportunity for 
comment once the regulation is noticed for public comment. 

Mr. Vice questioned if non‐California residents are eligible for STRF. Ms. Reiter noted that the 
Committee had discussed that at a previous meeting. She stated that the Committee also 
discussed the broadness of the proposed exemption, and that considerations were made to 
make the exemption narrower. 

Ms. Lee‐Carey pointed out that the Bureau regulates schools and not specific programs. She 
added that schools would still fall under the Bureau’s jurisdiction regardless of the exemption if 
the school offers academic programs and ESL programs. 

Page 15 of 18 



 

       
 

                                 
                      

 
                     

                         
 

                         
                         

                               
                

 
                                    
                       
                                 

    
 

                           
                       

                        
 

                                 
                             

                                     
                           
                             

                      
 

                               
                           
                                   

                           
                       

                           
                           

                           
                   

 
   

 
                                 

                         
                               
                                 

Ms. Rifredi clarified that the STRF regulation states that if a student is taking classes in a 
residency program in California, then the student is eligible for STRF. 

Agenda #8 ‐ Discussion and Consideration of Draft Regulatory Language for Compliance with 
Laws and Procedures (CEC section 94885(a)(9); Title 5, CCR, Chapter 1, Section 71755) 

Mr. Gray explained that the proposed regulation 71755 (Compliance with laws and procedures) 
addresses an ambiguity in the minimum operating standards. He noted that the regulation 
would allow the Bureau to enforce regulations and statutes that are not explicitly stated in the 
California Private Postsecondary Education Act of 2009 (Act). 

Mr. Vice asked for an example of what the Bureau would enforce that is not in the Act. 
Mr. Gray provided an example regarding financial reporting requirements in the Education 
Code that is not in the Act. Mr. Vice questioned where the Bureau would draw the line 
regarding enforcement. 

Ms. Lee‐Carey suggested adding language to narrow the regulation to only include laws relating 
specifically to private postsecondary education. Mr. Gray responded that statute requires the 
Bureau to implement a regulation that includes all other laws and ordinances. 

Ms. Reiter detailed an example of a school that had a faulty elevator that was leaking hydraulic 
fluid, which created an environmental hazard. She noted that the example is not very common, 
but it is one that might be relevant due to the nature of its potential to harm students. Ms. Lee‐
Carey agreed that issues involving potentials of student harm should be within the Bureau’s 
reach of enforcement, but cautioned that the proposed language is too board. Mr. Holt added 
that the definition of “applicable” within the statute should be reviewed. 

Mr. Gray pointed to sub (b) of the proposed regulation. He stated that the Bureau currently 
does not have any regulatory oversight of an institutions own policies and procedures. He 
stated the proposed regulation would allow the Bureau to issue a notice to comply if a school is 
not following its own policies and procedures. He added that the Bureau has received 
complaints involving institutions not following its policies and procedures. Mr. Holt questioned 
how the Bureau would handle instances where the institutions allow exceptions to its policies 
and procedures. Mr. Vice stated that many institutions include an exception clause in its 
policies and procedures. Ms. Hamilton pointed out that oversight would only apply to policies 
and procedures that are mandated by statute or regulations. 

Public Comment: 

Mr. Johnson stated that there is always an issue with regulations being either too broad or too 
specific. He explained that cases involving broad regulations that go before an Administrative 
Law Judge are often dismissed based of the broadness of the regulation. He added that any 
judge wants a clear indication that a defendant was aware that they were breaking a law. He 

Page 16 of 18 



 

       
 

                             
               

 
 

                     
   

 
                       

                             
                                   

                                   
                                     
                               

                     
 

                               
                           

                             
                         

      
 

                      
 

                            
 

                                     
        

 
 

         
 

                      
 

                            
 

                           
              

 
                           

                               
                      

 
                            
                           

noted that many disputes with regulations are due to a lack of understanding about the 
enforcement process and the scope of the regulations. 

Agenda #9 ‐ Discussion on the Emergence of Income‐Share Agreements (ISA) in Private 
Postsecondary Education 

Ms. Lee‐Carey discussed the rise of Income‐Sharing Agreements (ISA) in private postsecondary 
education. She stated that schools who are non‐accredited or not approved are offering ISA in 
lieu of Title IV loans. She explained that with an ISA a student agrees upfront to pay a 
percentage of their income for a set amount of time following the completion of a program at a 
school. She explained that the set amount of time is usually no longer than 2 to 3 years. She 
noted that the amount paid to the school would depend on the student’s income. She stated 
that under an ISA the school and student share the risk. 

Ms. Lee‐Carey added that she is aware the Bureau has had some concerns about ISA. She 
suggested creating a subcommittee to do more work on identifying areas of concern regarding 
ISA. Dr. Marion suggested that additional information on ISA could be presented at the next 
meeting. Ms. Lee‐Carey proposed having a representative who deals with ISA present material 
to the Committee. 

Ms. Reiter requested that sample agreements be provided to the Committee. 

Ms. Tsutsui recommended identifying Bureau statues or regulations that would relate to an ISA. 

Dr. Marion agreed with Ms. Lee‐Carey on the idea of bringing in an expert on ISA to have a 
dialogue with the Committee. 

Agenda #10 ‐ Future Agenda Items 

Ms. Lee‐Carey asked the Committee for input on future agenda items. 

Ms. Reiter requested to see random samplings of summarized complaints at the next meeting. 

Ms. Reiter suggested having a discussion on how the Bureau can identify problem schools 
before they cause vast harm to students. 

Ms. Reiter recommended having a discussion on the Committee’s repeated failure to reach a 
quorum. She noted that the issue could be resolved by adding the word “voting” before the 
word “member” in the statutory section on what constitutes a quorum. 

Ms. Butler asked for continuing input on how the Bureau is addressing staffing shortages. 
Dr. Marion responded that he is putting a focus on retention, improving training, and 

Page 17 of 18 



 

       
 

                             
                                        

                    
 

   
                         

                         
                         

 
 

               
 

                               
                               
                           

              
 
 

     
 

                          
 

retraining. He continued that working for the Bureau requires the attainment of a vast amount 
of knowledge, and that when staffing is lost it can leave a void. He added that there is also a 
focus on recruiting quality talent, while maintaining and supporting staff. 

Public Comment: 
Mr. Johnson suggested an in‐depth review of Bureau regulations regarding efficiency. He also 
suggested an analysis of the private postsecondary education sector, regarding the decline and 
growth of the sector and the number of students within the sector. 

Agenda #11 ‐ Discuss Potential Meeting Dates for 2018 

Ms. Lee‐Carey reported that the next meeting is scheduled for May 15, 2018. She stated that 
the other planned meeting dates are August 15, 2018 and November 6, 2018. She pointed out 
that the planned November 6, 2018 date would coincide with election day, and suggested 
moving the date to November 7, 2018. 

Agenda #12 ‐ Adjournment 

Ms. Lee‐Carey adjourned the meeting with the consent of all Committee members present. 

Page 18 of 18 





Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		minutes_20180213.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 0



		Passed: 30



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top

